Mr S Hearse
Chief Executive
Torridge District Council
Riverbank House
Bideford
Devon
EX39 2QG
DX 53606 BIDEFORD
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700
Date:

13 April 2022

MEETING OF COMMUNITY & RESOURCES
COMMITTEE
On:

Monday 25 April 2022

At:

Venue:

Caddsdown Business Support Centre, Clovelly Road, Bideford - Bideford

10.00 am

NOTICE OF MEETING

From the 7 May 2021, the law requires all councils to hold formal meetings in person. The
Council is also required to follow Government guidance and ensure that all venues used
are Covid secure and that all appropriate measures are put in place. Members of the public
will be able to attend the meeting in person if they are registered to speak under public
participation. Any members of the public who want to view the meeting will be able to watch
through the Councils YouTube Channel https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube

To:

Councillor R Hicks (Chair)
Councillor A Dart (Vice-Chair)
Councillors: D Brenton, C Bright, D Bushby, P Christie, C Hodson, D Hurley,
K James, N Laws, R Lock and D McGeough

Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting

AGENDA
PART I - (OPEN SESSION)
1.

Apologies for Absence
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting.

2.

Minutes of the Community & Resources Committee meeting held on 14 March
2022 (Pages 3 - 7)

3.

Action List (Page 8)

4.

Public Contributions
Public contributions in accordance with the current scheme. (The deadline for
registering to speak is by 2pm Thursday 21 April 2022. To register please email
dem.services@torridge.gov.uk).

5.

Forward Plan (Page 9)

6.

Declarations of Interest
Members with interests to declare should refer to the Agenda item and describe the
nature of their interest when the item is being considered.

7.

Agreement of Agenda between Parts I and II

8.

Urgent Matters of information to be brought forward with the permission of the
Chair and the Committee

9.

Decisions taken under Urgency Procedure (Pages 10 - 22)
To receive the Urgency Decisions for the following:



Additional Restrictions Grant
Household Support Fund

10. Update of the Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) (Pages 23 - 31)
To receive the report of the Finance Manager (S151 Officer)
11. Exclusion of the Public
The Chair to move:
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 10
of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.
12. PART II (CLOSED SESSION)
13. Non-Recoverable Debts (Pages 32 - 96)
To receive the report of the Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer)
14. Hatchmoor, Great Torrington - Site Disposal (Pages 97 - 100)
To receive the report of the Head of Communities & Place
Meeting Organiser: Sandra Cawsey

Agenda Item 2
1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMUNITY & RESOURCES MEETING
Caddsdown Business Support Centre - Bideford
Monday, 14 March 2022 - 6.00 pm

PRESENT

Councillor R Hicks (Chair)
Councillor A Dart (Vice-Chair)
Councillors D Brenton, C Bright, D Bushby, P Christie, C Hodson,
D Hurley, K James, N Laws and R Lock

ALSO PRESENT

S Hearse
S Dorey
S Kearney
D Heyes
S Harrington
J Williams
T Vanstone

223.

- Chief Executive
- Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring
Officer)
- Head of Communities & Place
- Finance Manager (Section 151 Officer)
- Planning manager
- Public Health & Housing Manager
- Senior Electoral & Democratic Services
Officer

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
No apologies were received for the meeting.

224.

MINUTES
It was proposed by Councillor James, seconded by Councillor Hodson
and Resolved: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 31 January be signed as a
correct record.
(Vote: For 8, Abstentions 3)

It was proposed by Councillor James, seconded by Councillor Brenton
and Resolved: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 January be signed as a
correct record.
(Vote: For 11)

Page 3

2

225.

ACTION LIST
The action list was reviewed and updated.

226.

PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS
There were no public contributions.

227.

FORWARD PLAN
The Forward Plan was noted.

228.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Declarations of interest were made when the specific agenda items to which they
related were under discussion.

229.

AGREEMENT OF AGENDA BETWEEN PARTS I AND II
It was proposed by Councillor James, seconded by Councillor Hodson and –
Resolved: That the Agenda as circulated be agreed.
(Vote: For 10, Abstentions 1)

230.

URGENT MATTERS OF INFORMATION TO BE BROUGHT FORWARD WITH
THE PERMISSION OF THE CHAIR AND THE COMMITTEE
There were no urgent matters brought forward.

231.

S106 PROCESS
The Planning Manager presented the report, the purpose of which was to provide
Members with further clarity and assurances that Ward Members would be
consulted and involved within the S106 process.
The Planning Manager confirmed that Planning Officers had undertaken a half day
professional development session focusing on S106 Agreements on 17 th February.
The Planning Manager noted that following the review of the process it had been
noted that in the instance where a proposal was Policy compliant there had been
instances where Ward members were not notified. Going forward the Planning
Manager confirmed that to ensure consistency of Ward member consultations,
additional checks and balances will be added to the process at both the Officer
delegated / Committee report stage, and the Legal instruction stage, with both
forms now requiring Officer confirmation of Ward Member consultation.
During the discussion Members were concerned with how monies from a recent
planning application had been allocated within the district. The Planning Manager

Page 4

3

commented that as there is a ND Biosphere it allows for the contribution to be used
in the local area. The Environment Act 2021 will allow applicants the option to
purchase credits from the Secretary of State who could then distribute the net gain
nationally.
Councillor Dart suggested that the committee invite Andy Bell from North Devon
Biosphere to discuss how the monies are allocated. The Planning Manager had
confirmed that he had already spoken to Andy Bell and had agreed to do a virtual
session with all members invited. Once the date has been agreed this will be
circulated to members.
Councillor Christie requested that Devon County Council be contacted to hold a
similar event on Highways S106 requests and how they are calculated. The
Planning Manager confirmed that he would contact Devon County and request that
a virtual training session be arranged.
Members noted the report.
232.

BUDGET AND FUNDING ALLOCATIONS
The Chief Executive presented the report for Members of the Committee to
consider proposals for the allocation of funding which have been presented at
Council meetings since the start of 2022.
During the Member discussion Councillor Lock asked if the council was looking at
ways to help Ukrainians settle in the Torridge District.
The Chief Executive confirmed that the council was working with partners across
Devon to look at ways in which we can provide support and that the council was
waiting to receive guidance for the schemes which the Government had
announced.
It was proposed by Councillor James, seconded by Councillor Hodson and –
Resolved:
That the forecast surplus be allocated as follows (as identified in the report):
2.1

Living Standards
a one-off grant of £12,000 for the financial year 2022-23 to CAB
a sum of £36,000 to provide a hardship funding

2.2

Housing
a sum of £25k to match fund the LGA grant of £25k

2.3

Health & well Being
a one-off grant of £10,000 to Community Developers for 2022-23
a one-off grant of £12,000 to the High Flow Programme for 2022-23

Page 5

4

2.4

Education & Skills
£50,000 Economic Development Reserve

2.5

Economy & Regeneration
£15,000 to match fund (LGA Grant of £20,000) and NDC & Petroc
funding of £15,000 (both the latter subject to their individual internal
decision making)

2.6

Other Support
to allocate balance of surplus (£160k) to reserve capital funding

(Vote: For – Unanimous)
233.

DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER URGENCY PROCEDURE
Councillor Dart declared a personal interest – business owner who had received
grant funding
The purpose of the report was for Members to note the urgent decisions recently
taken under the Council’s Urgency Procedure.
In accordance with the Constitution there is a requirement for decisions to be
reported to the next appropriate Community & Resources Committee explaining the
reason for the urgency.
The Committee noted the report.

234.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
It was proposed by Councillor James, seconded by Councillor Hodson and –
Resolved:
That under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act (as amended) the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business because of the
likely disclosure of exempt information by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 and
Paragraph 10 of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.
(Vote: For 10, Abstentions 1)

235.

PART II (CLOSED SESSION)

236.

TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION - ADDITIONAL PROVISION
The Public Health & Housing Manager gave a detailed and confidential update on
Temporary Accommodation.
Prior to the discussion Councillor Brenton declared a prejudicial interest, left the
meeting, and took no part in the debate and decision making.

Page 6

5

Following a lengthy discussion and consideration of the report by Members,
It was proposed by Councillor James, seconded by Councillor Lock and Resolved:
That the recommendations as set out in the report be approved.
(Vote: For - Unanimous)

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED)
It was proposed by Councillor James, seconded by Councillor Hodson and –
Resolved: That the press and public be readmitted.
(Vote: For – Unanimous)

The meeting commenced at 6.00 pm and closed at 7.33 pm

Page 7

COMMUNITY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE – 14 March 2022
Minute
No.
210

Action
Fees & Charges –

By Who

Date
Contacted

S Hearse

Comments
15.3.22 SH confirmed this is ongoing

Burial sites & absence of
land available. SH to speak
to the Property Team
North Devon Biosphere

S Harrington

Page 8

To invite Andy Bell to carry
out a virtual training session
for members
Devon County Council
To invite DCC colleagues to
hold a virtual training
session on Highways S106
requests.

S Harrington

22.03.22

Training arranged for Thursday 28 th
April on zoom

Completed

Agenda Item 3

ACTION LIST

COMMUNITY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN – 2022/23
Leadership

24 May 2022

12 July 2022

6 Sept 2022

11 Oct 2022

22 Nov 2022

10 Jan 2023

Community
& Resources
(Mondays)

6 June 2022
6pm

25 July 2022
10am

12 Sept 2022
6pm

24 Oct 2022
10am

5 Dec 2022
6pm

23 Jan 2023
10am

21 Feb 2023

Budget
Special
30 Jan
10am

6 March
2023
6pm

28 March 2022

Tuesday
11 April 2023
10am

Finance
Performance
Other

The Globe –
financial decision
(CF/SK)
Hols Agri-Bus.
Centre Phase 2
Skills / R&D
centre options
commission
Bideford Football
Club (AR)

Page 9

Burial sites –
absence of sites
(SK/AR)
Bradworthy –
Public toilets (AR)

One Northern
Devon –
consider
proposal of
granting
£12,000.00 to
the scheme.
(SH)
Leadership
only – Middle
Dock (CF)

Hatchmoor Land
Disposal
Environment
Centre (AR/SK

Agenda Item 5

PART II
Rec. from
Harbour Board
Re: Moorings

Agenda Item 9

Page 10

Page 11

Page 12

Page 13

Page 14

Page 15

Page 16

Page 17

Page 18

Page 19

Page 20

Page 21

Page 22

Agenda Item 10
REPORT OF

Section 151 Officer

To:

Community and Resources Committee

Subject:

Update of the Council‟s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)

Date:

25th April 2022

Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To update members of the Community and Resources on the Council‟s
MTFS, reflecting emerging pressures and exploring the impact of changes to the underlying
assumptions within the MTFS reported to C&R on 31st January 2022.

1. Introduction
1.1. The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) reported to C&R on the 31st January 2022
and subsequently reported to Internal Overview & Scrutiny and Full Council highlighted the
following key points:





Budget deficits for the financial year‟s 2022-23 – 2025-26, with the budgets only
returning to a semblance of balance by 2026-27.
The use of £1.4m from the Council‟s Transition in Government Reserve to balance the
revenue budgets over the period of the MTFS.
The impact of supporting the Council‟s leisure services
The financial pressures on the Council‟s capital program

1.2. As the MTFS is a projection of the Council‟s resources and expenditure commitments over
a five year period; by its very nature it makes use of assumptions and estimates. The key
assumptions within the Council‟s MTFS as previously reported were:









Council Tax to rise up to the referendum limit over the life of the MTFS - £5 per band
D equivalent (circa 2.9%)
Salaries to rise by 2% per annum over the life of the MTFS
Increased employer pension contributions from 2023-24
Income from short term treasury deposits to return to pre pandemic levels by 2025-26
Torridge Council support for leisure to reduce to £450k per annum by 2025-26
No real terms increase in the Council‟s income from Fees and Charges.
Increased planning income reflecting unprecedented income levels in 2020-21 and
2021-22.
Increased income from vehicular access to Northam Burrows reflecting increased
charges and charging period.

1.3. The table below summarises the MTFS strategy as recommended by C&R on the 31 st
January 2022 and subsequently approved by Full Council on the 21 st February 2022.
All figures in £’000

Expenditure
Funding
Use of Reserves to balance

2022-23
2023-24
7,983
10,433
7,609
9,804
374
629

2024-25
10,769
10,459
310

2025-26
10,984
10,849
135

Total Utilisation of Reserves to balance 2022/23 – 2026/27

2026-27
11,258
11,251
7

1,455

„* The 2022-23 expenditure and funding figures for 2022-23 are reduced because of technical
adjustments pertaining to the prior year‟s collection fund deficit for business rates.

Page 23

2. Emerging Issues
2.1 Since the MTFS processed through the Council‟s committee cycle in January/February
2022 of C&R, Internal Overview and Scrutiny and Full Council, further financial issues and
points of clarity have emerged.
Housing Benefit Subsidy:
The Council in undertaking its statutory obligations with respect to homelessness, places
individuals and families into its hostels and/or temporary accommodation.
The Council is experiencing increasing number of people presenting themselves at risk of
being homeless. This is due to a combination of factors.
 a decline in the number of properties locally available for rents (perhaps due in part
to increased numbers of properties becoming holiday lets)
 an increase in commercial rents, reflecting increased house prices which are
making it difficult for people to secure affordable rented accommodation.
In assisting people at risk of homelessness the Council, for the reasons outlined above is
finding it increasingly difficult to secure substanable long term tenancies. Consequently the
numbers (and the length of stay) in temporary accommodation are increasingly markedly.
The Housing benefit system is structured to discourage Councils from utilising temporary
accommodation as it is intended for individuals and families to be housed in substantial
long term tenancies. Consequently Torridge Council is only reimbursed for temporary
accommodation costs incurred at the LHA (Local Housing Allowance) rate, which for the
North Devon area are:





1 bed
2 bed
3 bed
4 bed

£97.81
£126.58
£149.59
£182.96

per week
per week
per week
per week.

The costs of providing temporary accommodation far exceeds the Housing Benefit subsidy
the Council can reclaim.
Another significant contributory factor in the Councils‟ expenditure pressure pertaining to
Housing Benefit arises from supported accommodation providers (which are not designated
as Registered Social Landlords). As with homelessness the Council cannot fully reclaim
the cost via housing benefit.
For the Financial Year 2021-22 the budgeted costs of housing benefit subsidy shortfall to
the Council was £200k per annum, QBR 3 projected a liability to the Council of £407k.
At the time of writing this report the accounts for the financial year 2021/22 are in the
process of being closed down, and the projected cost to the Council of Housing Benefit
subsidy shortfall is anticipated to exceed £500k.

Page 24

The chart below shows the Council‟s expenditure on temporary accommodation for the last
3 financial years.

As the chart clearly shows temporary accommodation costs represent a severe pressure on
the Council‟s finances; there is no reason to assume that the numbers of people presenting
themselves at risk of homelessness will diminish in the immediate future.
The Council has plans to procure another hostel and provide modular accommodation,
however these will take time to come to fruition and will only partially alleviate this pressure.
Torridge Support to Leisure
The budgets as approved by Full Council on February 21st included assumptions with
regards to the Council‟s support for Leisure. Subsequent to the MTFS report to Full Council
and in the lead up to 1st April 2022 officers of the Council in conjunction with Active
Torridge‟s Leisure Services Manager has firmed up on the level of support required from
Torridge Council.
The budget and MTFS report to Full Council on the 21st February 2022, detailed the
following additional costs of providing leisure (over and above the Councils existing
budgetary provision of £279k) and the total value of the Council‟s support to leisure.

o
o
o
o

2022/23
2023/24
2024/25
2025/26

Increased
Support
£536k
£424k
£276k
£171k

total cost of
Support to leisure
£ 815k
£ 703k
£ 505k
£ 450k

As result of the work done in conjunction with Active Torridge‟s Leisure Services manager,
the support to be provided by Torridge Council to Active Torridge has been amended and is
shown below.






2022/23
2023/24
2024/25
2025/26

Increased
Support
£455k
£320k
£173k
£171k

Page 25

total cost of
support to leisure
£734k
£599k
£452k
£450k

Essentially the level of support required from Torridge Council to Active Torridge has
decreased and the “target” support level of £450k has been reached a year earlier. There
will undoubtably be further refinement on the costs of providing leisure once Active Torridge
is fully operating the Council‟s leisure facilities. There will be a separate report back to
members in September/October detailing Active Torridge‟s 5 year business plan.
Income from short term treasury deposits
In response to the onset of the Covid-19 Pandemic the Bank of England slashed interest
rates, with the result that the income the Council earned from its short term treasury
deposits declined markedly. In recent months the Bank of England has raised its interest
rates, and there is general market expectation that interest rates will continue to rise.
The MTFS previously reported assumed income from short term treasury deposits would
not return to pre pandemic levels until 2025/26. The budgeted income from short term
treasury deposits included within the MTFS previously reported and the revised forecast is
shown below:






2022-23
2023-24
2024-25
2025-26

MTFS
£35k
£60k
£95k
£140k

Revised
£150k ***
£175k
£175k
£175k

*** Income from short term treasury deposits will be impacted by the timing of major capital
projects in particular the Environmental Centre and whether this is primarily funded from
working capital or from new borrowing. There may be an impact on the borrowing costs
associated with the new Environmental Centre of rising interest rates.
3. Sensitivity and Assumptions
The budget and MTFS reports to C&R, Internal Overview and Scrutiny and Full Council
detailed various assumptions within the MTFS. It would be prudent in light of the continued
inflationary pressures facing the UK to re-examine these assumptions to determine how
movements in these assumptions could potentially impact upon the MTFS.
Pay award
The Council‟s pay bill represents the single biggest expenditure item, accounting for £9.5m
in 2022/23 of the Council Gross expenditure £16.4m (excluding Housing benefit payments),
circa 58% of the Council‟s total expenditure.
The MTFS previously reported included an assumption of 2% pay award for each year of
the MTFS. At the time of writing this report UK inflation is circa 6.1%, and it is anticipated
that the Local Government Unions will put in a pay award reflecting the inflationary
pressures their members are facing. Whilst the employers‟ side in any negotiations will be
acutely aware of ensuring that any pay settlement is affordable. It is highly unlikely that the
pay settlement for 2022-23 can be held at 2%.
Should the pay settlement for 2022-23 come in at 3.5% rather than the 2% which is
currently in the Council‟s MTFS the funding pressure is as detailed below:
MTFS – 2%
2022/23 Salary Costs
2023/24 Salary Costs
2024/25 Salary Costs

£‟000
9,479
9,907
10,217

Page 26

Revised Costs @ 3.5%
(2% for year 23/24 onwards)
£‟000
9,615
10,050
10,363

2025/26 Salary Costs
10,502
10,651
2026/27 Salary Costs
10,744
10,897
The financial position is clearly compounded if subsequent years also incur pay awards in
excess of 2%. The example below assumes a pay award of 3% for each year of the MTFS.
MTFS – 2%
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25
2025/26
2026/27

Salary Costs
Salary Costs
Salary Costs
Salary Costs
Salary Costs

£‟000
9,479
9,907
10,217
10,502
10,744

Revised Costs @ 3%
(for duration of MTFS)
£‟000
9,570
10,098
10,512
10,906
11,262

There are an infinite number of scenarios that can be modelled, but all realistic/ prudent
assumptions result in significantly increased costs over the MTFS previously reported. It will
become clearer as the local government unions submit their initial pay claim which is
expected in May 2022.
Employers Pension Contributions
The Council‟s next tr-annual review of its pension contributions is scheduled for 1 st April
2023. The Council Actuaries have already indicated that the Council should expect to see
its employers‟ pension contribution rise from 17.5% to 18.75%; the impact of inflation on
obligations of the Employer‟s Pension to make inflation index linked retirement benefit
payments isn‟t known. Based upon a revised 2022/23 pay award of 3.5% an increase in
the employer‟s pension contribution of 0.5% adds circa £50k to the Council‟s pay bill.
Council Tax
As alluded to at the start of this report, the MTFS previously reported to members assumed
that Council Tax would rise by the referendum limit £5 per band D equivalent property, circa
2.9%. Should the decision be made not to increase the Council Tax the adverse impact on
the Council‟s MTFS is circa £125k per annum.
Central Government Funding
The MTFS currently assumes circa £1m of direct central government funding per annum for
the life of the MTFS. Government has delayed it‟s planned reform of local government
financing for several years. There is insufficient information to make an informed
judgement on future levels of Central Government grants, so the values within the current
MTFS are unaltered.
Pulling it all together
By its nature the MTFS which covers several years into the future is an educated estimate
of the Council‟s future financial position. However the emerging financial issues have made
themselves evident and it would be short sighted not to capture them at this juncture.
With regards to future pay awards and pension contributions, whilst is not possible to
predict with any certainty the current MTFS assumptions are clearly at the low end of
reasonable estimates.
For the purpose of this report three scenarios have been modelled, Optimistic, Likely &
Pessimistic. The assumptions for each option, are detailed below.

Page 27

Optimistic
 Housing benefit subsidy pressures
o 2021/22 expenditure is repeated in 2022/23 (additional pressure of £300k
per annum) and reduces by £50k per annum as new hostel and modular
accommodation come online over the life of the MTFS, these measures may
time to take effect.
 Torridge Council support to Leisure
o As agreed with Active Torridge
 Income from short term treasury deposits
o £150k for 2022/23 rising by £25k per annum until 2024/25.
 Pay award
o 3% pay award for 2022/23 and 2.5% thereafter
 Employers Pension contributions
o As per MTFS 18.75% from 2023/24
 Council Tax
o Increase to Referendum level for the duration of the MTFS
Likely
 Housing benefit subsidy pressures
o Assume £100k uplift to 2021/22 actual and assume this level of pressure
continues for the reminder of the MTFS
 Torridge Council support to Leisure
o As agreed with Active Torridge
 Income from short term treasury deposits
o £175k for 2022/23 and £25k increase for 2023/24.
 Pay award
o 3.5% pay award for 2022/23, 2.75% for 2023/24 & 2024/25, 2% thereafter
 Employers Pension contributions
o 19% from 2023/24
 Council Tax
o Increase to Referendum level for the duration of the MTFS.
Pessimistic
 Housing benefit subsidy pressures
o Assume £100k uplift to 2021/22 actual and assume £50k increase for each
year thereafter
 Torridge Council support to Leisure
o £100k increase to support provided by Torridge Council
 Income from short term treasury deposits
o £125k for 2022/23 and £25k increase for 2023/24.
 Pay award
o 3.75% pay award for 2022/23, 3.5% thereafter
 Employers Pension contributions
o 19.5% from 2023/24
 Council Tax
o No increase in 2023/24, Referendum there after.
The tables below summarise the three scenarios modelled

Use of reserves to balance @ Feb 22
Housing Benefit Subsidy Shortfall
Torridge Council support to Leisure - as per revised budget
Income form Short Term Treasury Deposits
Pay award 3% 22/23 2% thereafter
Employers Pension contribution - unchanged
Council Tax increase - unchanged
Revised use of reserves to balance

Optimistic
2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27
373
629
310
105
7
300
250
200
150
50
(81)
(104)
(53)
0
0
(115)
(115)
(105)
(60)
(60)
92
95
97
99
101
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
569
755
449
294
98

Page 28

1,424

2,165

Likely
2024-25 2025-26 2026-27
310
105
7
400
400
400
(53)
0
0
(105)
(60)
(60)
294
301
308
18
19
19
0
0
0
864
765
674

Use of reserves to balance @ Feb 22
Housing Benefit Subsidy Shortfall
Torridge Council support to Leisure - as per revised budget
Income form Short Term Treasury Deposits
Pay award 3.5% 22/23 2.75% 23/24, 24/25 then 2%
Employers Pension contribution - 19%
Council Tax increase - unchanged
Revised use of reserves to balance

2022-23 2023-24
373
629
400
400
(81)
(104)
(140)
(140)
140
214
0
18
0
0
692
1,017

Use of reserves to balance @ Feb 22
Housing Benefit Subsidy Shortfall
Torridge Council support to Leisure - £100k uplift
Income form Short Term Treasury Deposits
Pay award 3.75% 22/23 3.5% thereafter
Employers Pension contribution - 19.5%
Council Tax increase - no increase 23/24
Revised use of reserves to balance

Pessimistic
2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27
373
629
310
105
7
400
450
500
550
600
100
100
100
100
100
(90)
(90)
(55)
(10)
(10)
160
292
45
616
792
0
72
75
79
81
0
124
127
128
129
943
1,577
1,102
1,568
1,699

1,424

4,012

1,424

6,889

The balance on the Transition in Government Funding reserve (used to balance the Council‟s
revenue budget) at the 1st April 2022 is £1,703k, based on the modelling above these funds will be
exhausted as detailed below:
Optimistic
Likely
Pessimistic

1st Quarter of 2024-25
4th Quarter of 2023-24
2nd Quarter of 2023-24.

Clearly even the Optimistic modelling presents a serious financial challenge to the Council. Should
either of the Likely or Pessimistic scenarios be realised then the Council‟s Finances deteriorate
quickly, and corrective action will be needed as a matter of some urgency.
4.

Member Budget Working Group

Which ever of these/if any of these scenarios are realised then it is clear that action needs to be
taken to address the shortfall as a matter of urgency. The Transition in Government Funding
reserve exists to support the budgets whilst action is taken to remedy the situation not simply to
shore up the budgets.

Page 29

The chart below summaries the modelling undertaken

Implications
Legal Implications
The Council is required to set a balanced annual budget.
Financial Implications
These are contained in the report.
Human Resources Implications
n/a
Sustainability Implications
None directly applicable to this report.
Equality/Diversity
None directly applicable to this report.
Risk Management
The Council will be required to reduce net expenditure over the medium term. The modelling
undertaken details the risk to the council of not getting its Finances back into a balanced position.
Compliance with Policies and Strategies
Forms part of the strategy process.

Page 30

Lead Member Views
Councillor Hodson:
Date of Consultation – 8th April 2022

“It is entirely prudent of the Section 151 officer to update the MTFS in light of the changing
financial environment since the MTFS was reported to members in February 2022. The
modelling provided will give a valuable context to the work that the members‟ budget
working group will have to undertake. Even the optimistic modelling indicates that the
status quo can continue over the medium term, and that additional income streams and/or
savings need to be found.”
Conclusion
The report highlights the financial challenges faced by Torridge Council in an increasingly
uncertain environment, in particular the current high levels of inflation and the costs associated
with Torridge meeting its statutory housing obligations.
5.

Recommendations:

That Members note the report.
 Information contained in the report forms the basis of the targeted workplan of the
members budget working group.

Page 31

Agenda Item 13

Document is Restricted

Page 32

Document is Restricted

Page 36

Document is Restricted

Page 59

Agenda Item 14

Document is Restricted

Page 97

